
 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

March 15, 2017 – 1:30 PM 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 

Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of the February 15, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes  

3. Public Comment on Non-agenda Items  

4. Board Member Announcements 

5. General Manager’s Report  

6. Consent 
a. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 
b. Approve the expenses incurred by SMART due to the storms in January 2017 

 
7.  Closed Session  

a.  Conference with General Manager Farhad Mansourian, pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 54956.8 regarding real estate property negotiations 

  Property:  Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
   Santa Rosa Property Located at 2 W. 3rd Street and 34W. 6th Street 
  APN(s): 010-171-019 and 010-166-033 
  Negotiation Parties:  Farhad Mansourian and ROEM Corporation 
 
 b.  Conference with General Manager, Farhad Mansourian, pursuant to Government 

Code Section 54956.8 regarding real estate property negotiations 
Property:  Railroad Right Of Way Spur commencing at Mile Post 39.1 and 

located on or about 368 and 402 Petaluma Boulevard, Petaluma 
Negotiating Parties:  Farhad Mansourian – The Spanos Corporation (TSC)  
 

c. Conference with Legal Counsel and Chief of Police regarding security of public 
services and public facilities pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54957 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 19



 

 

 
d.  Conference with Legal Counsel regarding initiation of an action or to decide 

whether to initiate an action pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(4) 

 
8. Report Out of Closed Session  
 
9. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, April 5, 2017 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 

Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954  
 
10. Adjournment 

 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires an 
interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SMART at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
ensure arrangements for accommodation. Please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 794-3072 or dial CRS 711 for more information.  
 
DOCUMENTS: Documents distributed by SMART for its monthly Board meeting or committee meetings, and which are not otherwise 
privileged, may be inspected at SMART’s office located at 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 94954 during regular 
business hours. Documents may also be viewed on SMART’s website at: www.sonomamarintrain.org. Materials related to an item on this 
Agenda submitted to SMART after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at the SMART Office. For 
information about accessing SMART meetings by public transit, use the trip planner at www.511 

Page 2 of 19



 

Page 1 of 10 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  

February 15, 2017 - 1:30 PM  
5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 

Petaluma, CA 94954 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Fudge called the meeting to order at 1:35 PM. Directors Arnold, Eddie, Lucan, 
Mackenzie, Moulton-Peters, Pahre, Phillips, Rabbitt, Russell, Sears and Zane were 
present.  
 
Chair Fudge announced that the Granicus program which is the company that provides 
SMART with live streaming for Board meetings had an equipment failure this afternoon. 
This meeting will be audio recorded only. We apologize for the inconvenience. 

 
2. Approval of the January 4, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes 
   

MOTION: Director Phillips moved approval of January 4, 2017 minutes as presented. 
Director Arnold second. The motion carries 12-0-0.   

 
3. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 

Duane Bellinger stated that the property located at 5400 Old Redwood Highway, which is 
across the street from SMART was flooded during the most recent rains. Photos were 
distributed to each board member. 

 
 Vincent Patterson asked if SMART is near to full employment. 
 

Richard Hall stated that SMART’s Board has the power to seek delay in the Larkspur 
Extension Project and doesn’t have the power to prevent a delay. He urged the Board to 
consider the delay and strategically think of long-term goals and consider concerns from 
the central Marin voters. He submitted his comments in writing to the Clerk of the Board. 
 
Rick Coates stated that the Friends of SMART have concerns regarding the San Rafael 
traffic studies and would like to review those studies. 
 
Chris Snyder (Operating Engineers Local 3) thanked SMART staff for the construction work 
that has been completed. He urged the Board to continue the construction to Larkspur 
and to contact their Union if support is needed for construction. 

Page 3 of 19



 

Page 2 of 10 

Lee Sandoff (International Warehouse Union) urged the Board to continue construction 
of the Larkspur Extension Project. The organization is a huge supporter of SMART and 
willing to assist. 
 
Jonathan Friedman stated that his best friend was Charles McGlashan; and since 2008 he 
has been a strong supporter of SMART. He urged the Board to continue the construction 
of the Larkspur Extension Project.  
 
Roger Graeber stated he wants SMART to succeed; however, none of the Board members 
understand railroads and level boarding is necessary to be successful. 
 
Michael Davis stated that SMART made a mistake by not considering level boarding with 
the construction of gauntlet tracks. Also, SMART continues to make it difficult for NWPCo. 
to operate freight. 
 
Cindy Winter stated that she speaks on behalf of Patrick Seidler and herself by 
mentioning that the Francisco Boulevard Flip and Anderson Drive project were not 
included or approved in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR)--please consider revising 
the EIR. 
 
Tom Brandon mentioned that he has business on Lakeville Hwy. and San Rafael and there 
are alternative ways to avoid traffic. He strongly supports the need for transit. 
 
Jeff Rhodes stated that the proposed Larkspur Extension Project will cleave through the 
transit center serving approximately 9000 daily commuters forcing passenger loading 
onto inadequate city streets. He suggested that the tracks be elevated through Central 
San Rafael and a proper terminal where passengers cross the platform. He urged the 
Board to work with the citizens of San Rafael to make it right. 
 

4.  Board Member Announcements 
 
Director Phillips acknowledged those who addressed their concerns regarding the 
Larkspur Extension Project. He stated that the letter was respectively sent to the Board 
and Chair through SMART’s General Manager to have a dialogue and to deliberate 
whether to continue with the Interim Transit Center or wait for a site and funding for the 
Permanent Transit Center. Also, there is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) signed 
in 2005, between Golden Gate District, Marin Transit and County of Marin that specifies 
that SMART and Golden Gate District will enter into an Agreement that outlines a funding 
plan for the Permanent Transit Center. He is disappointed that the opportunity was not 
given due to the fact that there is going to be a significant impact on approximately 9000 
individuals. He would like the Board to consider having a Board Meeting/Workshop in San 
Rafael to discuss the Larkspur Extension Project.  A Regional Transit meeting is tentatively 
scheduled for March 6th. 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 19



 

Page 3 of 10 

Chair Fudge stated that at the December 7th Board Meeting/Workshop staff presented 
the Design-Build Method for Larkspur Extension Project and authorized staff to move 
forward with the project and issue the Request for Proposals. Two proposals were 
received on Tuesday, February 14th.  Since 2008, SMART has been working toward the 
completion to Larkspur. Also, SMART has made a commitment to continue exploring 
funding for the Bettini Transit Center and continue to work with the City of San Rafael. 
 
Director Moulton-Peters announced that she will be resigning from the Marin Council of 
Mayors and Councilmembers appointment to the SMART Board at the end of February 
2017. A Larkspur representative will be appointed next week. She thanked the Board 
members and SMART staff for the excellent work and dedication on the SMART project. 
She mentioned that is important for the Board to collaboratively work together in both 
Marin and Sonoma Counties because SMART’s success is based on the success of each of 
the cities along SMART’s right-of-way.  
 
Director Rabbitt mentioned that Director Moulton-Peters will be missed and is glad that a 
Larkspur representative will be joining the SMART Board. He appreciates Mayor Phillips’ 
issue (Larkspur Extension Project) and this is an issue that some have dealt with over the 
years (at one point or another), and reflects the difficulty of building a new passenger 
train service. He thanked the General Manager for his efforts in continuing to move the 
project toward completion from Larkspur to Cloverdale. At the same time, SMART has 
concentrated along the right-of-way with the majority of the resources (funds) for 
Sonoma and Marin Connectivity. As SMART progresses it’s important to collaboratively 
work together in both Counties to complete this project with the least amount of tax 
payer’s dollars. The good thing about having a sales tax measure is that you are asking the 
voters for approval. It’s a very difficult time, with construction and signal and high speed 
testing, however it’ important to address because we want the public to have a positive 
experience on opening day. Also, he and his collogues at Golden Gate Transit received a 
presentation on the Bettini Transit Center which concentrated on the bus movements 
rather than the impacts in the area. He suggested that staff and all transit agencies 
involved bring this item/issue back to the Board to prioritize and resolve this particular 
issue.  
 
Director Arnold stated that the announcement of SMART’s free introductory period and 
monthly pass was the most popular Facebook post this month with 12,818 people 
reached. She mentioned that SMART has the Federal, State, and Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission and Golden Gate Bridge District funding secured for the 
Larkspur Extension Project. This particular issue (Transit Center) in San Rafael has been 
known to the City of San Rafael for years. Twenty-five years ago the Administrative Law 
Judge mandated the City of San Rafael to accommodate SMART regarding the Anderson 
Drive tracks before beginning passenger train service. The City of San Rafael has been a 
valuable partner to SMART with supporters; former Mayor Al Boro, and Supervisors Bob 
Romier and Charles McGlashan who helped save the right-of-way and served on the 
Board. Director Phillips expressed his concerns regarding the 2005 Memorandum of 
Understanding between SMART and Golden Gate Bridge, Highway and Transportation 
District. He stated that the Bettini Transit Center is not the City of San Rafael property or 

Page 5 of 19



 

Page 4 of 10 

operation, however SMART train is going through Golden Gate Transit facility and the City 
of San Rafael should not be planning for it. Golden Gate Transit and SMART should be 
planning for this eventuality. Director Arnold clarified that she was speaking about 
Anderson Drive.  
 
Director Mackenzie stated there have been meetings involving Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) these last few years to assist in securing funding for 
the Larkspur Extension Project. Last year, MTC adopted a resolution for $3.5M to 
accomplish the interim solution for the Bettini Transit Center and allow SMART to move 
forward with passenger service. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission allocated 
$20M of Regional Measure 2 funds for the Larkspur Extension Project along with $20M 
from the FTA Small Starts Grant Program.  

 
 Director Zane said she is very appreciative of the Board for getting passenger train service 

to Airport Boulevard. On Thursday, February 16th she will be attending the Sonoma 
County Airport Ribbon Ceremony for the addition of American Airlines, which is the third 
major carrier for the airport. It’s exciting times for the connectivity of our transportation 
in Sonoma and Marin Counties. 

 
5.   General Manager’s Report 
 

General Manager Farhad Mansourian provided his written report to the Board. 
 
He stated that the Request for Proposals for the Larkspur Extension Project deadline was 
Tuesday, February 14th and SMART received two proposals. Staff along with a technical 
advisory group will review the proposals in the next several weeks. Final approval of the 
design-build project will be brought back to your Board at a later date. 
 
He said that 9-of-14 DMU engines have been replaced. They continue to replace engines 
every weekend and should be completed by end of March 2017. 
 
On February 3rd, he and Diane Steinhauser, Executive Director of Transportation 
Authority of Marin (TAM) attended the Marin County Office of Education forum where 
schools, cities and county leaders were invited to discuss how to support employees in 
utilizing the newest commuter service.  
 
He announced that systemwide there will be increased speed testing during the months 
of February/March 2017. Safety is SMART’s top priority and urged the public and drivers 
to be patient. Drivers should never stop on the tracks, and never speed through the 
crossing gates to beat a train.  He urged Board members as they sit on City or County 
Boards to make their constituents aware of this testing and SMART’s priority for safety 
and to urge their Police/Sheriff’s departments to assist in educating and enforcement of 
traffic laws at the grade-crossings.  
 
 
 

Page 6 of 19



 

Page 5 of 10 

Director Comments’ 
Director Mackenzie asked for clarification on staffing. Mr. Mansourian responded that 
Operations Department has three vacant positions at this time. Currently, there are 
candidates going through the background process. 
 
Director Zane suggested that Communications and Marketing Manager Jeanne Belding 
provide announcements to the Board members so they may in turn share the messaging 
with their constituents via social media. 
 
Director Phillips asked the status of the homeless along SMART’s right-of-way. Ms. Welch 
responded that homeless and encampments are an ongoing issue not just for SMART but 
all counties and cities. SMART continues to work with Santa Rosa and San Rafael Police 
Departments in the two major areas of concern. Enormous progress has been made along 
the right-of way to remove debris and people. Director Phillips asked for clarification on 
Positive Train Control (PTC) and SMART operating 7-days a week. Mr. Mansourian 
responded that as a result of the shunting issue, a Rail Conditioning Plan was established 
which is a combination of rail traffic and scrubbing. This process has significantly reduced 
the shunting issue. High-speed testing will begin at the planned train speed for each 
grade crossing for signal testing. Parallel with high-speed testing, SMART will begin PTC 
testing and work along with the freight operator to certify their engineers and 
locomotives. 
 

6. Consent  
a.    Approve Monthly Financial Reports 
b.    Approve Hanson Bridgett, LLP Contract Amendment No. 4 
c.  Accept SMART’s 2016 Annual Report 

 
Chair Fudge asked for Board comments on the proposed consent agenda.  

 
MOTION: Director Eddie moved approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. Director 
Sears second. The motion carried 12-0-0. 

 
7.   Approve Amendments to the 2011 Operating and Coordination Agreement between 

SMART and North Coast Railroad Authority (NCRA) 
 

General Manager Mansourian stated that your board on June 15 2011, after nearly two 
years of intense negotiations, approved an Operating and Coordination Agreement 
(“Agreement”) outlining the rights and responsibilities of the two parties to operate over 
the railroad. Over the years, the parties have disagreed on the interpretation and intent 
of the language in the Agreement. 
 
In the most recent disagreement regarding the storage of Liquidated Petroleum Gas (LPG) 
at Schellville highlighted the need for more clarity. This issue prompted numerous 
meetings among the parties in the last several months. He emphasized that we are only 
talking about “storage of goods” the Federal Law already governs the “transportation of 
goods” by train.   

Page 7 of 19



 

Page 6 of 10 

 
He provided an illustration of the Schellville location where the LPG is being stored. Also, 
North Coast Railroad Authority (NCRA)/Northwestern Pacific Railroad Company (NWPCo.) 
filed a petition before the Surface Transportation Board (STB) that complained about the 
interference by SMART and their operations.  
 
Some highlights of the changes to the Agreement included: 
 
Storage of Liquidated Petroleum Gas (LPG) 

 NCRA/NWPCo. may store LPG loaded tanks cars on track only at Schellville yard in 
accordance with applicable federal, state and local law. 

 NCRA/NWPCo. shall not store LPG or any other hazardous materials anywhere 
else on SMART’s tracks. 

 NCRA/NWPCo. shall implement any and all health and public safety measures. 
 
Positive Train Control (PTC) 

 SMART will be responsible for installing PTC equipment on tow freight 
locomotives. 

 NCRA will provide the locomotives and freight operator staff for installation and 
testing of the PTC system. 

 On an interim basis SMART will provide a “protected” operating window only 
between midnight and 8am. 
 

Financial Responsibility for Siding/Spurs 
 SMART will only be responsible to pay up to $100k for one additional siding/spur 

located near the Sonoma Mountain Village provided that NCRA enters into 
agreement with customer by January 2018 and construction of the spur/siding is 
completed by January 2019.  

 
Petaluma Station  

 NCRA shall quit claim to SMART the freight easement including all rights and 
interest with respect to the Petaluma Depot/Station in order to provide clear title 
unencumbered by any freight easement. 

 SMART shall not oppose NCRA’s efforts to enforce the June 2003 agreement 
entered by and between the City of Petaluma, Riverfront, LLC, NCRA and NWPCo. 

 
Litigation 

 NCRA and NWPCo shall dismiss their petition before the Surface Transportation 
Board (STB). 

 
Lastly, NCRA Board of Directors unanimously approved the amendments to the 2011 
Agreement at their February 8th meeting.  
 
Directors’ Comments 
Director Phillips asked if it is visible from Sonoma Raceway. Mr. Mansourian asked Mr. 
Kerruish, Superintendent of Transportation to answer, he responded that due to recent 

Page 8 of 19



 

Page 7 of 10 

flooding at the Schellville yard, the storage tanks were moved to a higher elevation where 
they can now be seen from the Raceway. Once the flooding clears they will be moved 
back to the original location. 
 
Doug Bosco (NWPCo. Representative) reaffirmed that if Schellville yard is flooded the 
storage tanks are moved to higher elevations until the water clears.  
 
Director Arnold asked for clarification of “protected operating window”. Mr. Mansourian 
responded that SMART will not operate any trains during that period of time. 
 
Director Phillips asked for clarification on the Financial Responsibilities for Sidings/Spur. Is 
SMART paying $100K for the spur for NCRA’s or SMART’s operation? Mr. Mansourian 
responded that the spur cost is for freight operation when it occurs, SMART will pay for 
the cost because the current Agreement language was not clear and this clarification will 
save thousands of dollars. Director Fudge stated that many hours were spent in 
negotiations with NCRA to develop the 2011 Operating Agreement. Chair Fudge 
reminded the Board that six years ago this section of the Agreement was discussed at 
length. 
 
Director Rabbitt stated during track construction and removal of sidings, an aggressive 
schedule was outlined and addressed when freight would be allowed on the service line. 
He asked about the duration of the “protective operating window.” Mr. Mansourian 
responded that many jurisdictions along SMART’s right-of-way are in the Quiet Zone 
process. Once it’s completed and approved, SMART and NWPCo. the freight company will 
be required to operate within those rules.  
 
Director Lucan asked if the Agreement has any provisions when the Schellville yard is not 
accessible for storage. Mr. Mansourian responded the Agreement limits the hazardous 
material storage only to LPG and only to one area.   
 
Director Eddie is pleased that both parties were able to negotiate an Amendment to the 
Operating Agreement. 
 
Public Comments 
Susan Gorin (First District Supervisor of Sonoma County) stated that Sonoma Valley is the 
most important tourism destination in Sonoma County it is the gateway to Sonoma and 
Napa Valleys. This is the wrong place to store LPG or any tankers in any part of this area. 
By approving this Agreement it benefits SMART’s and the Freight Company’s operations 
but you are throwing Sonoma Valley residents and tourism “under the train.” She 
mentioned that she will convene a public meeting in the next coming weeks to address 
residents’ concerns. 
 
Roger Graeber stated he supports SMART and would like NWPCo. to be an effective 
freight company. It’s important for both organizations to be successful.  
 
 

Page 9 of 19



 

Page 8 of 10 

Jeff Richard (Chief Deputy County Counsel, Napa County) asked if there are any possible 
impacts in moving and storing LPG and other tankers at the Lombard yard. He is pleased 
that the settlement agreement will require the NWPCo to implement safety precautions 
and coordinate with safety responders. He asked for clarification of the provisions on 
page 3, section 5 of the Letter of Intent–Agreement would apply to the Lombard Yard and 
Segment in Napa County. Superintendent of Transportation Jon Kerruish responded that 
the Agreement between SMART and NCRA only allows NWPCo. to store LPG at the 
Schellville yard. 
 
Sandy Darnell (property owner on Arnold Drive) stated that she is very much impacted by 
the storage of the LPG and tanks. She said they are not monitoring safety and the area is 
not safe. She urged the Board to consider all the safety concerns by allowing them to 
continue to store LPG tanks at Schellville yard. 
 
Michael Davis stated that the freight vehicles run on fuel. The media publicized the 
storage of the LPG tanks which increased public interest and the freight company had to 
take safety measures and hire security.  
 
Mike Pechner (Volunteer Fireman at Cordelia) stated there is only one Fire Department 
near the main track line that serves Union Pacific, California Northern and Northwestern 
Pacific Railroad, 680 Junction, American Canyon and Hwy 12. Public safety is their primary 
concern and they are extremely busy all the time monitoring the train. 
 
Norman Gilroy told the Board that the tankers pose a massive threat from explosion due 
to accident or terrorist attack. He submitted his written comments to the Clerk of the 
Board. 
 
Sue Smith stated that Schellville is not an appropriate area for storing hazardous 
materials. During the past two storms, the water has been over-topping a levee within 
approximately 200 feet of the location of the tankers. Should the levee fail and the tracks 
compromised, the tankers will fall into waters of the State, and flow into San Pablo Bay.  
 
Dave Schwartz (Associate at Law, Offices of William Ross) asked for clarification on the 
48-hour clause of the storage of LPG. District Counsel Tom Lyons responded that clause 
is placed on the agreement to acknowledge the Federal Regulation regarding the 
transportation of any/all hazardous materials. 
 
Duane Bellinger asked where the LPG is being delivered and if it could be stored closer 
to its destination. 
 
Mr. Mansourian stated that NWPCo.’s Business Plan is to store LPG at the Schellville 
yard for their clients in the East Bay. With this Agreement we have been successful 
bringing all public safety organizations together and limits are placed at having only a 
total of 160 cars stored based on the existing two 6000 feet auxiliary tracks. 
 
 

Page 10 of 19



 

Page 9 of 10 

Doug Bosco stated that the track along American Canyon and Napa is California 
Northern Railroad (CFNR) jurisdiction and they are allowed to transport LPG or any 
other materials. The situation with SMART was the clause about long-term storage of 
LPG. NCRA filed a petition with STB which is comprised of 5-member board appointed 
by the US President that has exclusive authority over railroads.   
 
Director Rabbitt stated that right now is the time to update all the discrepancies of the 
Agreement and thanked staff for making that effort. He is pleased that the Amendment 
to the Agreement includes the following: 1) Positive Train Control; 2) Sidings/Spurs and 
3) Petaluma Station easement. Also, both railroads need to succeed and would like the 
freight company to transport more goods via railroad to keep off the highway. 
 

Director Lucan asked for clarification on the risk if the Agreement is not approved by the 
board. Mr. Mansourian responded that this Agreement limits the storage of LPG at 
Schellville yard only and clarifies other areas that were very vague. 
 
Director Arnold stated that when she and the Board were informed of the LPG storage 
issue, she contacted Supervisor Gorin to inform her of the situation hoping at that time 
she would exactly address her concerns like today. However, there was no appreciative 
response by her. She thanked SMART, NCRA and NWPCo. for taking time to negotiate an 
Amended Agreement that works for all parties. 
 
Director Zane stated that she is pleased that the Board is approving this Amendment to 
the Agreement. Since transportation of goods is federally regulated and going to the STB 
to get a ruling may not be in SMART’s favor. She thanked SMART and NRCA for taking the 
time to negotiate and agree on the terms that will be successful for both parties. 
 
Director Arnold left at 3:44 PM 
 
Director Moulton-Peters asked for clarification if the LPG tanks are being allowed to be 
stored now. Mr. Mansourian responded that both sides disagree on the current 
Agreement language and it was not clear on the long-term storage and location. Once 
this Amended Agreement is approved, it limits LPG storage at the Schellville yard only, 
subject to federal, state and public safety laws. NCRA’s Board of Directors approved the 
Amended Agreement at their February 8th meeting.  
 
Director Pahre is pleased with the Amended Agreement that limits LPG storage to the 
Schellville yard. She asked if the local entities are notified if NWPCo. evokes the 48-hour 
temporary storage clause. Mr. Lyons responded that the Federal Railroad Administration 
does not consider the area to be a storage, they require the Freight Company to 
transport the hazardous material promptly. 
 
Director Mackenzie stated that the Federal Railroad Administration controls the railroad 
when it comes to transporting hazardous materials. He thanked the negotiating parties 
for the Amended Agreement that clearly outlines the transportation and storage of LPG. 
 

Page 11 of 19



 

Page 10 of 10 

Director Phillips asked for clarification on how many LPG tanks can be stored at Schellville 
yard. Mr. Mansourian responded that each 6,000 feet auxiliary track at Schellville can 
store 80 tanks at each segment. 
 
Lastly, Chair Fudge stated that the Board and SMART staff continue to learn that existing 
railroads have rights associated with them. Also, this Amended Agreement outlines the 
safety and security measures that need to be met. She is pleased that both agencies are 
establishing a working relationship. 

 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Approve Amendment to the 2011 Operating and 
Coordination Agreement between SMART and North Coast Railroad Authority (NCRA) as 
presented. Director Eddie second. The motion carried 11-0-0. (Director Arnold absent) 

 
 Chair Fudge adjourned the Board to closed session at 3:57PM to discuss the following: 
 
8.  Closed Session - Conference with legal counsel regarding litigation of an action or to 

decide whether to initiate an action pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(4). Number of cases: 1  
  

9. Report Out of Closed Session 
 
Chair Fudge reported out of closed session at 4:42 PM on the following: 

 
  Conference with legal counsel regarding litigation of an action or to decide whether to 

initiate an action pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4). 
Number of cases: 1  
 
Report Out: No action taken, nothing to report. 

 
10. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, March 1, 2017 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old 

Redwood Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954 
 
11. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 4:44PM 
  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza 
Clerk of the Board         
 
Approved:      

 
 

Page 12 of 19



Page 13 of 19



FY 2016-17 YTD Remaining 
 Budget Actuals Budget

Revenues
Sales/Use Taxes 36,286,248         18,893,778         17,392,470         
Interest Earnings 377,500              352,031              25,469                
Rent - Real Estate 487,197              310,171              177,026              
Federal  - FHWA 1,619,924           1,099,969           519,955              
Other Governments 2,478,177           1,585,046           893,131              
Measure M 350,000              -                      350,000              
MTC - RM2 8,436,937           1,349,153           7,087,784           
Fare Revenue 1,976,000           -                      -                      
Charges For Services 30,000                41,486                -                      
State Grants 2,104,500           3,679                  2,100,821           
Federal FTA Funds 5,533,042           365,696              5,167,346           
Miscellaneous Revenue 60,000                331,045              -                      

Revenue Total 59,739,525         24,332,055         33,714,001         
-                      0.00                    

Expenditures
Administration

Salaries & Benefits 4,199,937           2,445,848           1,754,089           
Services & Supplies 6,602,434           3,100,193           3,502,241           
Other Charges 18,791,927         7,262,632           11,529,295         
Machinery & Equipment 74,302                25,847                48,455                

29,668,600         12,834,520         16,834,080         
Capital -                      (0.00)                   

Salaries & Benefits 1,196,770           603,453              593,317              
Services & Supplies 431,266              175,948              255,319              
Other Charges 138,177              62,636                75,542                
Land 388,500              296,750              91,750                
Machinery & Equipment 22,864,796         1,558,843           21,305,954         
Infrastructure 31,753,174         15,995,290         15,757,883         
Intangible Assets 2,000                  2,000                  -                      

56,774,683         18,694,920         38,079,764         
-                      0.00                    

Operations
Salaries & Benefits 11,086,865         5,490,479           5,596,386           
Services & Supplies 5,180,006           1,636,192           3,543,814           
Buildings & Capital Improvements 2,830,718           769,349              2,061,368           

19,097,588         7,896,020           11,201,568         
(280,000)             -                      

Expenditure Total 105,540,872       39,425,460         66,115,412         
(280,000)             0                         

Investment Report

As of February 2017
Bond Reserve Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 17,072,500         

Interest Fund
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 4,146,308           

Project Fund
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 273,950              

Principal Fund
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 5,339,069           

SMART Fund Balance
Bank of Marin 7,826,152           
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 49,741,384         

84,399,364         

SMART
Monthly Financial Report 

As of February 2017

Page 14 of 19



Co
nt

ra
ct

or
Sc

op
e

Ad
ob

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 In
c.

Re
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

2,
00

0
$0

A.
J. 

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

s a
t R

O
C,

 F
ul

to
n,

 a
nd

 R
ob

la
r

$2
2,

14
8

$1
0,

61
3

Al
co

ho
l &

 D
ru

g 
Te

st
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
DO

T 
Dr

ug
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
 T

es
tin

g
$2

4,
87

5
$7

,0
86

Al
lia

nt
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Br

ok
er

ag
e 

&
 R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$6

9,
00

0
$0

Ar
am

ar
k

U
ni

fo
rm

 S
er

vi
ce

$1
7,

98
7

$1
,1

23
Ar

ea
 W

es
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

In
c

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
0,

00
0

$2
0,

42
9

Ba
rb

ie
r S

ec
ur

ity
 G

ro
up

Se
cu

rit
y 

Gu
ar

d/
Pa

tr
ol

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$6

9,
00

0
$4

1,
85

7
Be

nd
er

 R
os

en
th

al
, I

nc
.

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 L

ar
ks

pu
r E

xt
en

sio
n

$2
23

,7
80

$3
4,

96
9

Be
rn

ad
et

te
 L

am
be

rt
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

 A
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$4

,5
00

$0
Be

tt
in

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
$1

5,
00

0
$6

,2
52

Bi
ck

m
or

e
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 R

ai
lro

ad
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

Pr
og

ra
m

$1
,5

00
$1

,5
00

Bi
g 

Ca
t A

dv
er

tis
in

g
Di

gi
ta

l A
dv

er
tis

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

8,
00

0
$1

2,
00

0
BK

F 
En

gi
ne

er
s I

nc
.

Re
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

0,
00

0
$0

Bu
rk

e,
 W

ill
ia

m
s &

 S
or

en
se

n,
 L

LP
Li

tig
at

io
n 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
50

,0
00

$5
7,

40
4

Ca
l A

cc
es

sib
ili

ty
, I

nc
.

AD
A 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 C

P4
$2

5,
00

0
$6

,6
36

Ca
sc

ad
e 

He
al

th
ca

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s

AE
D 

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

$1
,7

50
$1

,7
50

Ce
nt

ur
y 

U
rb

an
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
8,

51
3

$1
4,

13
8

Ce
rt

ifi
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t G
ro

up
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 S
ta

ffi
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$4

0,
00

0
$2

5,
17

7
CI

H 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
.

In
du

st
ria

l H
yg

ie
ne

 T
es

tin
g 

an
d 

Re
la

te
d 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
2,

00
0

$0
Co

at
es

 F
ie

ld
 S

er
vi

ce
, I

nc
.

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Re

lo
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
5,

00
0

$6
,6

02
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Co

rp
s N

or
th

 B
ay

RO
W

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 &
 W

ee
d 

Ab
at

em
en

t
$4

0,
00

0
$0

CS
W

/S
tu

be
r-

St
ro

eh
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Gr

ou
p

Re
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

8,
00

0
$0

Da
vi

d 
Rz

ep
in

sk
i &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Tr
an

sit
 M

ar
ke

t, 
Fa

re
 A

na
ly

sis
, C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

$3
5,

00
0

$1
2,

07
5

Da
vi

d 
Ta

tt
er

sa
ll 

&
 C

o.
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
0,

00
0

$0
Da

vi
d 

Ta
tt

er
sa

ll 
&

 C
o.

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 L
ar

ks
pu

r E
xt

en
sio

n
$4

2,
00

0
$1

6,
00

0
De

nn
is 

W
al

th
er

El
ec

tr
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

es
ig

n 
Re

vi
ew

$5
,2

00
$5

,2
00

Dr
. M

ar
k 

Cl
em

en
ti

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 E
va

lu
at

io
ns

$3
4,

25
0

$1
6,

44
0

Em
te

c 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

, L
LC

O
ra

cl
e 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Sy

st
em

 S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$6

4,
76

1
$4

3,
60

3
eP

at
h 

Le
ar

ni
ng

Cl
ou

d-
Ba

se
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 / 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
of

tw
ar

e
$6

,0
00

$6
,0

00
Ge

or
ge

 H
ill

s C
om

pa
ny

, I
nc

.
Th

ird
 P

ar
ty

 C
la

im
s A

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
1,

40
0

$2
,4

22
GH

D,
 In

c.
SW

PP
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e,
 A

ut
oC

AD
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
Tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r C
P4

$6
8,

77
8

$6
5,

28
8

GP
 C

ra
ne

 &
 H

oi
st

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ca

l/O
sh

a 
Cr

an
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

,9
50

$0
Gr

an
ic

us
, I

nc
.

M
ed

ia
 S

tr
ea

m
in

g 
&

 In
te

rn
et

 B
ro

ad
ca

st
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$8

,0
00

$5
,2

40
Ha

ns
on

 B
rid

ge
tt

 L
LP

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

20
,0

00
$7

7,
98

7
Ho

lla
nd

 C
om

pa
ny

Te
st

in
g 

an
d 

M
ea

su
rin

g 
Tr

ac
k 

Ge
om

et
ry

, T
ra

ck
 S

tr
en

gt
h,

 R
ai

l P
ro

fil
e,

 a
nd

 R
el

at
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

4,
00

0
$2

4,
00

0
Hu

lc
he

r S
er

vi
ce

s,
 In

c.
De

ra
ilm

en
t &

 H
az

m
at

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$4

0,
00

0
$0

IC
F 

Jo
ne

s &
 S

to
ke

s,
 In

c.
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

er
m

itt
in

g 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

10
,0

00
$1

49
,1

42
In

te
lle

tr
ac

e
In

te
rn

et
/C

el
lu

la
r T

ow
er

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

3,
00

0
$1

3,
75

0
In

te
lli

ge
nt

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

So
llu

tio
ns

, I
nc

.
M

ax
im

o 
M

M
S 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

14
,8

57
$2

74
,7

59
In

te
rw

es
t C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Re
lo

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

,7
49

$1
,3

30
Irw

in
 In

c.
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
t P

re
pa

ra
tio

n
$2

0,
00

0
$0

Ja
m

es
 F

la
ge

ol
le

t
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
29

,1
80

$1
04

,4
38

Je
ffr

ie
s P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

Co
ns

ul
tin

g
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$9
,2

50
$0

Jo
hn

 Z
an

zi
Fi

re
 a

nd
 L

ife
 S

af
et

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
$2

0,
00

0
$6

,8
38

Ka
th

y 
W

oo
d 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Re
lo

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

6,
25

2
$0

Kr
eb

s C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
0,

00
0

$6
83

Ku
rla

nd
 D

ig
ita

l
W

eb
sit

e 
Ho

st
in

g 
an

d 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$7

00
$0

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y
Ac

tiv
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

28
, 2

01
7

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
17

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
17

  
Ac

tu
al

s-
To

-D
at

e

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

Page 15 of 19



Co
nt
ra
ct
or

Sc
op

e
LT

K 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
Sy

st
em

s D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
,0

82
,4

74
$1

,2
32

,5
52

M
ac

ia
s G

in
i &

 O
’C

on
ne

ll 
LL

P 
(M

GO
)

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ud

it 
Se

rv
ic

es
$4

4,
40

1
$4

4,
40

1
M

ag
gi

or
a 

&
 G

hi
lo

tt
i, 

In
c.

N
on

-M
ot

or
ize

d 
Pa

th
w

ay
 E

. C
ot

at
i A

ve
 to

 G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e 

Dr
iv

e
$1

,1
36

,8
96

$1
,0

91
,4

71
M

an
ag

ed
 H

ea
lth

 N
et

w
or

k
Em

pl
oy

ee
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

 (E
AP

) S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

,9
10

$6
23

M
as

ab
i L

LC
SM

AR
T 

M
ob

ile
 T

ic
ke

tin
g 

Pi
lo

t P
ro

je
ct

$1
35

,0
00

$0
M

Gr
od

ne
r, 

LL
C

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

0,
00

0
$3

5,
79

1
M

oo
re

 Ia
co

fa
no

 G
ol

ts
m

an
, I

nc
.

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

W
eb

sit
e 

De
sig

n
$3

9,
50

0
$3

4,
72

5
N

el
so

n\
N

yg
aa

rd
 C

on
su

lti
ng

  A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 In
c.

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Pa
rk

in
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

la
n

$2
,3

51
$2

,3
51

N
et

sp
ee

d 
So

lu
tio

ns
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s a
t P

et
al

um
a,

 R
O

C,
 M

O
W

$5
,3

00
$5

,3
00

N
et

sp
ee

d 
So

lu
tio

ns
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s a
t R

ob
la

r
$1

0,
82

3
$1

0,
81

5
N

et
w

ov
en

 In
c.

De
sig

n 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e 
fo

r D
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
$6

2,
66

4
$4

0,
25

0
N

or
th

 B
ay

 S
AP

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

Ab
us

e 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

,0
00

$0
N

os
sa

m
an

 L
LP

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s -
 R

ai
lro

ad
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Is

su
es

 &
 T

ra
ns

it 
D-

B 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
$2

01
,9

55
$1

31
,6

31
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
rs

 o
f C

A
Pr

e-
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t E
va

lu
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
1,

95
0

$8
,6

30
O

ra
cl

e
Fu

sio
n 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Re

so
ur

ce
 P

la
nn

in
g 

(E
RP

) S
of

tw
ar

e 
&

 H
os

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$4
7,

88
0

$2
3,

94
0

Pa
ro

di
 In

ve
st

ig
at

iv
e 

So
lu

tio
ns

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
9,

60
0

$1
7,

25
0

Pa
yc

he
x,

 In
c.

Pa
yr

ol
l P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

1,
63

2
$1

2,
22

9
PG

H 
W

on
g 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$8
4,

00
4

$4
4,

66
6

Pl
at

in
um

 A
dv

iso
rs

, L
LC

St
at

e 
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

20
,0

00
$7

0,
00

0
Po

rt
ol

a 
Sy

st
em

s,
 In

c.
SM

AR
T 

St
at

io
n 

N
et

w
or

k 
Co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
69

,9
04

$2
47

,7
64

Po
rt

ol
a 

Sy
st

em
s,

 In
c.

Ci
sc

o 
SM

AR
Tn

et
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
0,

52
7

$0
Pu

bl
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

dv
iso

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
,0

00
$0

Pu
bl

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ar
bi

tr
ag

e 
Bo

nd
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
$2

,0
00

$0
Ra

ilP
ro

s,
 In

c.
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r L

ar
ks

pu
r E

xt
en

sio
n

$7
61

,6
53

$5
94

,8
35

Re
fo

re
st

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
.

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
Co

nt
ro

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

3,
20

6
$2

0,
57

9
Se

rv
Pr

o 
of

 L
ak

e 
M

en
do

ci
no

 a
nd

 S
on

om
a 

Co
un

ty
Bi

oh
az

ar
d 

Cl
ea

n-
U

p 
an

d 
Ha

zm
at

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

5,
00

0
$0

Sh
im

m
ic

k 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Co

, I
nc

.
D/

B 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 IO
S2

, H
ay

st
ac

k,
 O

M
F,

 S
ta

tio
n 

Fi
ni

sh
es

 a
nd

 P
at

hw
ay

$6
,4

77
,9

65
$4

,0
36

,0
33

SP
TJ

 C
on

su
lti

ng
N

et
w

or
k 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, S

ec
ur

ity
, M

ig
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

Se
tu

p 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

89
,8

80
$1

39
,2

53
St

ac
y 

an
d 

W
itb

ec
k/

He
rz

og
, J

V
De

sig
n/

 B
ui

ld
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 C

iv
il,

 T
ra

ck
 &

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
s I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
f I

O
S-

1
$1

0,
79

3,
29

0
$8

,4
11

,5
55

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tr

ol
 B

oa
rd

M
ira

 M
on

te
 S

ite
 C

le
an

up
 P

ro
gr

am
$6

,4
00

$3
,5

82
St

ev
e 

Ta
yl

or
 E

xc
av

at
io

n
Ve

hi
cl

e 
De

te
ct

or
 L

oo
p 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$6
,9

23
$0

ST
V,

 In
c.

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Br
id

ge
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
00

,0
00

$7
7,

64
3

Su
m

ito
m

o 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 &

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 V
eh

ic
le

s
$2

0,
84

3,
75

6
$6

21
,9

66
Su

m
m

it 
Si

gn
al

, I
nc

.
IS

TE
A 

- C
on

st
ru

ct
in

g 
Bl

ac
k 

Po
in

t B
rid

ge
 A

ut
om

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
$1

94
,2

50
$1

94
,2

50
Su

m
m

it 
Si

gn
al

, I
nc

.
Tr

ac
k 

an
d 

Si
gn

al
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

$8
5,

11
0

$7
6,

89
6

Su
m

m
it 

Si
gn

al
, I

nc
.

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Ca

ll-
O

ut
 S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 T

ra
ck

 a
nd

 S
ig

na
ls

$7
0,

00
0

$2
6,

96
0

Sw
ift

ly
, I

nc
.

AV
L 

M
ob

ile
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
an

d 
W

eb
sit

e 
In

te
rf

ac
e

$9
,9

00
$9

,9
00

Th
e 

GB
S 

Gr
ou

p
In

te
rn

et
 C

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 (W

iF
i) 

fo
r D

M
U

 T
ra

in
s

$1
,0

90
,3

48
$6

36
,4

42
U

ta
h 

Tr
an

sit
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(U
TA

)
DM

U
 W

he
el

 T
ru

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$3
,2

62
$0

Va
n 

Sc
oy

oc
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
Fe

de
ra

l L
eg

isl
at

iv
e 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

4,
00

0
$2

0,
00

0
W

BE
De

sig
n 

an
d 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 S

ec
ur

ity
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
$2

07
,0

72
$1

67
,2

10
Xe

nt
ra

ns
, I

nc
.

DM
U

 W
iF

i D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

4,
09

0
$5

1,
41

3
To

ta
ls

$4
8,
74

3,
25

6
$1

9,
21

5,
63

7

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
17

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
17

  
Ac

tu
al

s-
To

-D
at

e

P a
ge

 2
 o

f 2

*A
ct

ua
ls-

To
-D

at
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 in
vo

ic
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
28

, 2
01

7,
 b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 in

 S
M

AR
T'

s F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ys
te

m
.

Page 16 of 19



Quarterly Project Report  
March 2017 

 
 

Phase 1 Project Budget: 

  
The project budget to date is $448.2 million.  In this update, we have increased the project budget to 
account for the inclusion of project cost changes and enhancements approved at the January 4, 2017 
Board Meeting. Those enhancements include the addition of new bike racks and lockers as well as the 
addition of parking at two stations in Sonoma.  The budget was also increased to account for 
reimbursement agreements for the Sonoma Mountain Village Pathway, Cotati fence upgrades, and 
Sonoma County Signal Preemption.   
 

Project Revenues to Date:  

 
Of the $448.2 million in project revenues necessary to complete the project, 98% have been received.   

PROJECT REVENUES TO DATE:  As of February 28, 2017     

  Budget Actual % Received 

Sales Tax and Other Local   $141.6 million   $141.6 million 100% 

Bond Sale  $180.0 million   $180.0 million  100% 

Grant Funds  $126.5 million   $115.5 million  91% 

Total*  $448.2 million  $437.1 million    

 
 

Project Expenditures to Date:  

 
Of the $448.2 million budgeted expenditures, $403.8 million (or 90% of the total) have been expended. 

PROJECT EXPENDITURES TO DATE:  As of February 28, 2017     

  Budget Actual  % Spent 

 Construction Contracts   $ 362.2 million   $320.9 million  89% 

 Design/Construction Mgmt./Other   $ 48.1   million   $45.7   million  95% 

 SMART Agency costs (incl. labor)   $ 38.0   million   $37.1   million  98% 

 Total*     $ 448.2  million   $403.8 million    

 
 

Current Project Status  

 
Project construction related to the multiuse pathway, station finishes, and signal activation continues as 
detailed each month in the General Manager’s report.  Rail car engine replacement and final acceptance 
testing continues on all seven rail vehicle sets. Infrastructure work in conjunction with installing Clipper 
validators and vending machines, Wi-Fi equipment and other passenger-serving needs is nearly complete.  
In the coming weeks we will be engaging in more high speed dynamic signal testing as well as Positive 
Train Control testing and will soon be running a “similated service” schedule in advance of carrying 
passengers.  Final station finishes are being completed in the coming weeks, including the installation of 
SMART’s Clipper vending machines. 
 
 
 
*Sums may vary slightly due to rounding.  

Page 17 of 19



Page 18 of 19



Page 19 of 19


	01_Agenda_03.15.2017
	02_Minutes_02.15.2017_Final
	06a_Monthly Financial Reports
	February 2017 Contract Summary.pdf
	Contract Report


	06b_Storm Expenses



